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SCRIPTION

. (Check One)
[] Exceffent (X Good [] Fair [[] Deteriorated [[] Ruins [[J Unexposed
CONDITION o (Check One) (Check One)
D Ahéred K] Unaltered [] Moved K] Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Rock Springs Camp Ground, a well-known Methodist August camp meeting

complex located in a wooded plot near Rock Spring, consists of 288 numbered
wooden "tents" placed in two and a partial third concentric square rows en-
closing a large grove approximately two hundred and fifty feet wide. In the
center of the oak-planted square is the "arbor," a roofed shelter with open
sides under which the camp meetings take place. An alley breaks the squares
at each corner and in the center of each side. Wooden privies, numbered to
correspond to the tents, stand in rows several hundred yards behind the tent
The spring is located a short distance from the grove.

O
.

The arbor, which was constructed for the camp meeting of 1832, probably
predates all existing tents. The focus of camp activity, it is a rectangular
structure with a deep hip roof featuring a ventilation cap at the apex. [Hancﬂ-
hewn mortise-and-tenon roof timbers, which are exposed, rest on inner and

outer rows of upright posts braced with plain brackets. The roof, originally
covered with boards, was shingled in the mid-nineteenth century, and received m
its present standing-seam tin roof in the late 1860s. The camp bell is locat m
ted in the west end of the ventilation cap. Inside the arbor, at the west

end is a raised platform containing a pine pulpit with pine slat choir seating —

occupying the rear portion of the platform. A large open area separates the
pulpit platform from the congregation seating which consists of three sectioms
of pine slat pews, capable of seating 1,000, divided by two side aisles. Thd
mourner's bench (also known as the seeker's bench or the "anxious seat") is
placed before the pulpit. The hard clay ground is covered with straw.

//Ehe frame tents, each one designed to house a single family, are numberg
from one to 288, and vary greatly in age and condition. The tents are built
as row houses, sharing party walls. Each tent is a one-story frame structurg
nearly square in plan. The name "tents" indicates the derivation of these
structures from the earlier makeshift tents of cloth, pine bark, and other
materials. f These portable tents were gradually replaced by permanent "tents{"
Each tent €onforms closely to a standard form although, having been constructe
by an individual family, it exhibits minor variations.

Q.
TNOILDONYLSN

The typical tent has a gabled main block with a shed room in the rear,
covered by an extension of the main roof or by a separate roof. The main
facade is sheltered by a shed porch either bracketed out from the facade or
supported on plain posts. An open lean-tqQ porch extends from the rear of
many tents. Flush sheathing covers the main facade of the typical tent, and
the sides and rear are covered with weatherboards. Beneath the front eaves
several weatherboards form ventilation louvers, and the siding beneath the
Silde eaves is spaced loosely for the same reason. The main facade has a sidsg
“entrance with a vertically sheathed door, and beside the door is a long bencH
eted out from the wall surface. The front porches of the tents form a
puous protected promenade smaid to be enjoyed particularly by young camp-
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The crude interior of the typical tent features a hard clay floor covers
with straw or sawdust, unfinished walls, and an open loft, reached by a ship'
ladder stair which ascends in the front left corner of the main block, which
is a single room. A large platform elevated above the straw-covered dirt
floor serves as a base for sleeping pallets. The stalr well is surrounded by
a plain railing. Theloft is only partially floored, and is protected at its
outer edge by a simple railing. An opening in the rear wall of the main bloc
sometimes containing a vertically sheathed door, leads to the rear shed room.
This room, furnished with built-in benches and shelves and containing an open
pass-through shelf in the rear wall, serves as the eating area.

is thought to be the sole tent remaining from the original building activity
at Rock Springs, which occurred several years after the lots were laid out
and sold in 1830. The structure is built, as were all of the original per-
manent tents, of squared saddle-notched logs. No mortar seals the interstice
The upper wall surfaces are sided. The vertically sheathed door in the front
central entrance is hung on a wooden pegged hinge. The other original tents,
many said to have been burned during the Civil War, have been replaced.

Although the tents vary greatly in age and condition, the weathered
patina of the wood complex gives it a homogenous appearance which belies its
accretive growth. No ornamentation distinguishes one tent from another, but
the minor differences exhibited within the over-all standardization provide
variety. Occasional tents are free-standing, placed with the gable to the
front. Some of the main facades are cowvered with large flush wood shingles,
and smaller wooden shakes cover some porch and main roofs. On either side
of the central facade entrance of tent number 6L is a sash window covered by
louvered shutters. Number 69, the only painted tent, has a concrete floor.
Two adjoining tents in the first row, numbers 68 and 69, have garret-level
porches (upper galleries) enclosed by simple. railings and supported by
plain posts. Number 147 is a gable-to-front structure with no eave overhang.
The walls of tent number 150 are board-and-batten.

Tent No. 1 traditionally is believed to be the oldest standing tent. It
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Abor iginal [} Education [] Political
(7] Prehistoric [] Engineering K] Religion/Phi-
[C] Historic [] Industry losophy

[] Agriculture [J Invention [T] Science

[C] Architecture [[] Landscape [C] Sculpture

[ Art Architecture [C] Social/Human-

[] Commerce [ Literature itarian

[C] Communications [ Military [C] Theater
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The development of individual camp meeting sites is obscured within the

spontaneous, simultaneous growth of the Great Revival Movement throughout

the frontier areas of the United States in the early nineteenth century.

The camp meetings fulfilled a need for fellowship in the lives of the

and South Carolina were especially fertile breeding grounds for these reli-
gious revivals. As recorded by a contemporary observer, the behavior of the
participants swept up by religious fervor was often quite strange. A con-
temporary observer of camp meeting conduct wrote:

To see those proud young gentlemen and young ladies dressed in
their silks, Jewelry, and prunella, from top to toe take the
jerks would often excite my risibilities. The first jerk or
so you would see their fine bonnets, caps and combs fly and so
sudden would be the jerking of the head that their long loose
hair would crack almost as loud as a waggoner's whip.

This Christian frontier crusade was most actively carried by the Metho-
dist Church, and in 1790, Daniel Asbury, a young Methodist circuit rider froi
Fairfax County, Virginia (related by marriage to the great Methodist bishop,
Francis Asbury), was sent to North Carolina to form the Lincoln Circuit whic
included Lincoln County and several adjoining counties. Herbert Asbury, the
bishop's biographer, stated that in 1794, the members of Rehoboth Congrega-
tion in Lincoln County, which was organized by Daniel Asbury, held a camp
meeting in the forest near the church which was so successful that it con-
tinued for several days, resulting in more than three hundred converts.
According to Mrs. Gabriel Sigmon, a campgoer and author of the "History and
Traditions of Rock Springs Camp Ground," this camp meeting moved to Robey's

Mrs. Sigmon stated that the camp meeting moved for the third and last time in
1828, when the Third Quarterly Conference of the Lincoln Circuit designated
Rock Springs as the site of a permanent camp meeting. The journal of Bishop
Asbury, who traveled continuously through North Carolina spreading the Metho
dist gospel during these years, provides verification for the early history
of this camp meeting, for the bishop mentioned a visit to "Daniel Asbury's
meeting house" in Rehobeth in 1794, a visit at the home of Daniel Asbury in
Lincoln County in 1799, and a stop at "Robey's" in 181lL.

Camp Ground near Denver in Lincoln County three years after its establishment}

settlers who infiltrated the frontier areas. Western Virginia, North Carolina,

T
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A deed of August 7, 1830, records that Joseph Mathias Mundy deeded LO
acres of land to the Rock Springs Camp Ground trustees for Methodist use.
The original handwritten account book that recorded the first sale of lots to
individual owners of May 15, 1830, is extant and indicates that the site was
divided into squares, each containing twenty-two lots. The inner section of
lots--consisting of the east square, north square, west square, and south
square--was sold in 1830. Lot number one, for example, was sold.to Philip
Whitener and Mecon Shelton for $1.25, with the remaining lots sold for similan
prices. Several years passed, however, before permanent shelters were erected
The arbor (or "harbour" as it is spelled in the original record book), which
was constructed in 1832 for $255, was built before any of the tents. The camp
ground was incorporated in 1851, and a self-perpetuating board of trustees was
established.

A%ock Springs Camp Ground is not only the earliest camp meeting organizatil
in North Carolina and possibly one of the earliest in the country, but is also
one of the few camp meeting sites in the state which is still active. J The can
meeting occurs during the first week in August each year, and appears to have
lost none of its vitality, for new tents are still being added. The Rock
Springs Camp Ground complex is an embodiment of the communal religious spirit
which is still in existence in the Piedmont and western areas of North Carolin

GPU 921.724
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Lincoln County Records, State Department of Archives and History, Raleigh,
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Sigmon, Mrs. Gabriel. "History and Traditions of Rock Springs Camp Ground."
no publisher, no date.
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